ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 19, 2004
8:01 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Representati ve John Coghil |
Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

MVEMBERS ABSENT
Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 439

"An Act relating to the authority to take oaths, affirmations,
and acknow edgnents in the state; relating to notaries public;
relating to fees for issuing certificates with the seal of the
state affixed; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 439( STA) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 31

Proposi ng anmendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
relating to the Al aska permanent fund and to paynents to certain
state residents from the Al aska permanent fund; and providing
for an effective date for the anmendnents.

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 467

"An Act establishing an Al aska Comrenorative Coin Conmm ssion to
develop the design concepts and to rmake recomendations
regarding the final design of the Alaska quarter under the 50
States Conmenorative Coin Program Act; and providing for an
effective date.”

- MOVED CSHB 467(STA) OQUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 19, 2004



BILL: HB 439
SHORT TI TLE: OATHS; NOTARI ES PUBLI C; STATE SEAL
SPONSCR(S): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

02/ 05/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 05/ 04 (H) STA, JUD, FIN

03/ 04/ 04 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

03/ 04/ 04 (H) <Bi || Hearing Postponed to Mon. 3/8/04>
03/ 08/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102

03/ 08/ 04 (H Heard & Held

03/ 08/ 04 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 18/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

03/ 18/ 04 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 19/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

BILL: HIR 31

SHORT TITLE: CONST AM PERVANENT FUND
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) HOLM

01/ 02/ 04 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 2/ 04

01/ 12/ 04 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 12/ 04 (H) WM STA, JUD, FIN

01/ 23/ 04 (H WeM AT 8: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
01/ 23/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 23/ 04 (H) M NUTE( V&M

02/ 04/ 04 (H WeM AT 8: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
02/ 04/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 04/ 04 (H) M NUTE( V&M

02/ 18/ 04 (H WeM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
02/ 18/ 04 (H) Moved CSHIR 31(W&M Qut of Committee
02/ 18/ 04 (H M NUTE( &M

02/ 19/ 04 (H WeM RPT CS(W&M) NT 6NR

02/ 19/ 04 (H) NR. WEYHRAUCH, SAMUELS, WLSON, OGG,
02/ 19/ 04 (H MOSES, HAWKER

03/ 04/ 04 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

03/ 04/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 04/ 04 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 09/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

03/ 09/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 09/ 04 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 19/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

BILL: HB 467
SHORT TITLE: COMVEMORATI VE QUARTERS COVM SSI ON
SPONSOR(S) :  REPRESENTATI VE('S) ANDERSON

02/ 16/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 19, 2004



02/ 16/ 04 (H) STA L&C
03/ 19/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

W TNESS REG STER

ANNETTE KRElI TZER, Chief of Staff

O fice of the Lieutenant Governor

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented HB 439 on behalf of the
adm ni stration.

JANET CLARKE, Director

D vision of Administrative Services

Department of Health & Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Revi ewed the fiscal notes on behalf of the
departnment, during the hearing on HIR 31.

ANGELA SALERNO, Program Coor di nat or

Director's Ofice

Di vision of Public Assistance

Department of Health & Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions during the hearing on
HIR 31.

JACK KREI NHEDER, Chi ef Anal yst

Ofice of the Director

O fice of Managenent & Budget (QOvB)

O fice of the Governor

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: On behalf of Representative Holms staff,
provi ded comrents regarding a broader perspective on the inpact
of HIR 31 on state finances and state agency fi nances.

JERRY BURNETT, Director

Adm ni strative Services

Depart ment of Corrections (DOC)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke to the effects that HIR 31 woul d have
on DOC.

DENI SE HENDERSON, Executive Director

Council on Domestic Violence and Sexual Assault (CDVSA)
Department of Public Safety

Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 19, 2004



POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke to the inpact that HIR 31 would have
on CDVSA.

SHEI LA KI NG Fi nance O ficer

Post secondary Educati on Conmm ssi on

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Described the effects of HIR 31 on the
student | oan program

GUY BELL, Director

Central Ofice

D vision of Administrative Services

Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: D scussed the effects of HIR 31 on several
prograns within the departnent.

M CHAEL BARNHI LL, Assistant Attorney General

Commerci al / Fai r Busi ness Section

Civil Division (Juneau)

Depart ment of Law

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered question from the conmttee during
t he hearing on HIR 31.

SHARON BARTON, Director

Central Ofice

Per manent Fund Di vi dend Di vi si on

Depart ment of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Di scussed the effects of HIR 31 on the
di vi si on.

REPRESENTATI VE TOM ANDERSON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 467.

MARI A VEYHRAUCH, Student Council Representative

Ms. Jones' Fifth Grade d ass

Auke Bay El ementary School

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the <class to
recommend a conceptual anmendnent to HB 467.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 19, 2004



TAPE 04-40, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:01 a.m Representatives Seaton

Lynn, and Wyhrauch were present at the <call to order.
Representatives Coghill, Berkowitz, and Guenberg arrived as the
nmeeting was in progress.

HB 439- OATHS; NOTARI ES PUBLI C; STATE SEAL

[ Contai ns brief discussion of SB 203.]
Nunber 0042

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 439, "An Act relating to the authority to take
oaths, affirmations, and acknow edgnents in the state; relating
to notaries public; relating to fees for issuing certificates
with the seal of the state affixed; and providing for an
effective date.”

Number 0059

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved to adopt the commttee substitute (CS)
for HB 439, Version 23-GH2022\Q Bannister, 3/18/04, as a work
draft.

Number 0068
CHAI R WEYHRAUCH obj ected "for di scussion purposes.”
Number 0135

ANNETTE KREITZER, Chief of Staff, Ofice of the Lieutenant
Governor, directed the commttee's attention to a sectional
analysis [in the commttee packet] that is labeled as a
conpanion to Version H, but, as M. Kreitzer explained, is
actually "to Version |I." She said, "These are the changes that
are also incorporated in Representative Guenberg's Version Q
but it's inportant to point out sone of the additional changes
after you first sawthis bill."

M5. KREI TZER noted that regarding "what was Section 8" - which

lists the qualifications to be a comm ssioned notary public -
there had been a question [during a previous hearing on the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 19, 2004



bill] about a Ilifetime ban on felons being able to act as
not aries. She indicated that her office worked wth
Representative G uenberg and the Departnent of Corrections to
formulate a conpromse [regarding a forner felon applying to be
comm ssioned as a notary public], which she noted is found on
page 8, lines 6-7, of Version Q which read as foll ows:

(5 nmay not have been incarcerated in a
correctional facility for a felony conviction within
10 years before the comm ssion takes effect;

M5. KREI TZER reveal ed that the Departnment of Correction's advice
was that people who "stay clean"” for 10 years generally don't

reoffend - particularly with a felony. She indicated that the
af orenentioned |anguage is also reflected again in Section 9,
regar di ng t he application requirenents, and in "t he

applicability section about what happens to current comm ssions,
whi ch was Section 15."

MS5. KRElI TZER noted that the second mmjor change in setting out

what a notary public cannot do occurs in Section 11. For
exanple, she indicated that Section 11 clarifies that a notary
cannot notarize docunents which benefit the notary. She al so

mentioned [that Section 11] "picks up an anmendnent that we had
requested that the $5 nane-change fee is not in addition to the

cost of a new certificate, under [AS] 44.19.024." I n response
to a question from Chair Wyhrauch, she clarified that a notary
cannot notarize his/her own signature. In response to a follow

up question from Chair Wyhrauch regardi ng benefits to notaries,
she pointed to page 12, lines 19-25, which [is a continuation of
the | anguage on page 11, line 25, "A notary public may not"].
It read as foll ows:

(6) performa notorial act if the notary public

(A) is a signer of or naned in the docunent
that is to be notarized; or

(B) wll receive directly from a transaction
connected with the notorial act a conm ssion, fee,
advantage, right, title, interest, cash, property, or
ot her consideration exceeding in value the normal fee
charged by the notary of the notorial act.

M5. KREITZER, in response to another question from Chair
Weyhrauch, confirmed that that is a new provision, which was in
Version | [never before the conmttee as a work draft].

Number 0399

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 19, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON suggested that saying the notary is not

allowed to receive a "fee" - [page 12, line 23] - "al nost neans
that a notary has to perform the service for free, otherw se
they're going to receive a fee." He asked if he msread that
| anguage.

MS. KREI TZER reenphasi zed that the |anguage read, "will receive
directly from a transaction connected with the notorial act".
She said, "I think that it's an arms-length transaction; | don't
believe it's speaking of the ... notorial fee itself." She
deferred to Representative G uenberg.

Number 0436
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that he had introduced a bill in
1990. He continued as follows:
We took sonme provisions from that bill, and this was
one of them And what the |anguage neans - and this
[provision] was taken from a nodel Act ... - it
prohibits a notary from notarizing a docunment if the
notary will receive noney from the transaction itself,

not the notorial fee.
Nunmber 0496
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON reported discovering that his previous
guestion is answered [on line 24], which read: "exceeding in
val ue the normal fee charged".

Nunmber 00438

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked for «clarification of an exanple as
fol | ows:

Say Representative Lynn and | are entering into a
transaction, and |I'm a notary. And | notarize
Representative Lynn's signature and | don't charge a
fee as a notary - | just have a notary stanp and | can
do it. And Representative Lynn agrees to give ne
cash, because it's a contract, and | notarize
Representative Lynn's signature. Is that a -- am |

prohibited as a notary from notarizing Representative
Lynn's [signature], because |I'm going to receive cash
from Representative Lynn? C Is that the intent
here, Ms. Kreitzer?

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 19, 2004



MS. KRElI TZER sai d she believes so.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG r esponded that the answer is definitely
yes. He added:

Now, that doesn't apply to -- let's say you're a
| awyer, and you've got two clients involved. Because
you're not getting noney from the transaction, you're
getting noney from representing the client. Thi s

means if you're [a] participant in the deal itself.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH opined that that's tenuous, at best, because
many times in that situation, the nobney goes into the |awers
trust account and the |lawer takes a percentage of that as a
paynent, or "it goes to their fee." He concluded that "they
directly benefit fromthat."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG enphasi zed that that is not the intent.
He clarified, "The intent is if you're a participant in the dea
itself, because otherwise, no |awer could ever notarize any
docunents for the client.” He indicated the same would apply
for a realtor.

Number 0692

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked what the public policy purpose is of
having a notary prohibited fromreceiving noney on a transaction
such as hi s af orenentioned exanple using hinself and
Representative Lynn. He asked, "What is wong with a notary
receiving noney if they notarize Representative Lynn's signature
on a contract?"

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG responded that the issue 1is not
recei ving noney "because of that.”" He clarified wth an exanple
as follows:

There's a business deal between the two of you. And
there's a key docunment that is notarized. And t hat
docunent could later be utilized as evidence of
whet her you "fenokeed" up Representative Lynn's
signature or not. And you're a direct participant in
the deal itself.

They want sonebody who has no participation or stake

in the deal - and no stake in the outcone of that deal
- to be the neutral third w tness. If that's not the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 19, 2004



case - if you're a lawer representing one of the
clients, if you're a realtor who's a buyer's agent or
a seller's agent (indisc. - coughing).

Number 0719

MS. KREI TZER noted that the |last major change would be to repeal
AS 44.50.180 (c). She said, "W found out after the bill was
introduced that our state law is inconsistent wth our federal
|l aw, regarding post nmsters being able to charge fees for
notarizing."

M5. KREI TZER directed the conmttee's attention to a [two-page]
docunent she prepared this norning [available in the conmttee
packet] that shows anendnents, their purpose, and the I|ieutenant
governor's position on them She stated her belief that this
handout covers nost of the changes that are in Version Q She
pointed out that [in the top-left] colum, the nunber "13"
shoul d be changed to "12". She noted that nost of the changes
on the first page of the handout are drafting considerations

She explained that "Drafter decision” neans that the |ieutenant
governor has accepted the [Legislative Legal and Research
Services] drafter's opinion. The [first block on the] second
page, she noted, deals wth new sections of unauthorized
practi ce. She said Representative G uenberg would explain that
anmendnent, but indicated that the I|ieutenant governor, although
fine with the change, doesn't think the issue is a problem The
| ast anendnent [on page two of the handout] has to do with a
handbook and a new section dealing with regulations, and she
explained that this sinply codifies what is currently being
done. In response to a question from Representative G uenberg,
she indicated that she doesn't know where in Version Q the
anmendnent regardi ng unaut hori zed practice was inserted.

Number 0923

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG t hanked Ms. Kreitzer and her staff.
Number 0955

REPRESENTATI VE = GRUENBERG  not ed SB 203, regar di ng "t he
adm nistrative law judge," was reported out of the House
Judiciary Standing Conmittee on March 18, 2004. He stated that
Ms. Kreitzer had said she would like to have the procedure for

the disciplining of the notary public be, essentially, subsuned
under [SB 203], so that the judge would be the central panel of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 19, 2004



admnistrative |aw judges. He suggested that if [SB 203]
passes, then "we can ultimtely renove part of these.”

Nunber 1017

MS. KREI TZER confirnmed that it has been advised by [Legislative
Legal and Research Services] and the Departnment of Law that it
is premature to offer those anendnents that deal wth "that
i ssue. "

Number 1059

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, regarding the bonding issue, asked what
t he purpose of the bond is.

M5. KREI TZER answered that the purpose of the bond is to protect
"the public who engages in notary.” She revealed that there is
sone debate about whether $1,000 is a sufficient anpunt for that
pur pose. She said Al aska has "self surety,” which she expl ai ned
nmeans that a person can provide surety for sonmeone and post a
t housand-dol | ar bond. She suggested that if the bond anmount is
increased, it mght nean that self-surety would "go away." She
said this issue was discussed with Representative G uenberg.
She revealed that the notary administrator had reported that
there have been no conplaints over the last several years
regardi ng the anmount of the bond.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that he is trying to figure out
what protection a bond provides the public, and what that bond
is to cover.

M5. KREI TZER deferred to Representative G uenberg.

Number 1159

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG brought attention to page 9, line 26,
which he said is the part of the bill regarding the bond. He
mentioned a [handwitten, one-page] "chart" of the [bond anounts

of the] 50 states [included in the comrittee packet].

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH suggested that Representative G uenberg offer
hi s anendnent .

Number 1200

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 19, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG [nobved to adopt] Anmendnent 1, which
read as follows [original punctuation provided, some formatting
changed] :

Page 9, line 26: strike "1,000" and insert "$5,000."

Comment : The $1,000 bond has been in effect since
1961. The amount is so small now, 43 years |ater,
that it provides wvirtually no protection at al

against a notary's malpractice (forgeries, collusions,

etc.). $1,000 would not pay nuch towards the cost of
a lawsuit today. The bond should be at |east [sic]
$5, 000. | would support a higher requirement if the

menbers desire it. According to the All-State Notary
Public Guide published by the American Society of
Notaries, states require bonds as set forth on the
attached sheet. Section 3-3 of the Mdel Notary Act
recomrends a $25,000 bond. Bonds need not Dbe
corporate surety bonds, but can be personal surety
bonds, which do not cost anything.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG explained that a corporate bond is
backed up by a corporate surety, whereas a personal bond neans
t hat soneone other than the notary has guaranteed that he/she is

worth the anmpunt of the bond and will pay that amount of noney
if the action against the bond is successful. He stated, "It's
not just dealing with the seal, but it's anything that's ill egal

that the notary public does in connection with that notarization

Nunber 1238

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH renarked that this would be a fee increase and
asked Ms. Kreitzer what the |lieutenant governor's position is on
t he issue.

M5. KREI TZER replied, "W've advised Representative G uenberg of
the |lieutenant governor's position and we just oppose the
anendnent . "

Number 1260
REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL said he would like to know if there has
ever been a point where the bond has been required through sone

m suse of "this seal ."

Number 1300

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 19, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG referred again to the aforenentioned
handwritten chart that shows bond anpbunts of the 50 states. He
noted that there are [20] states in the l|eft-hand columm that
don't require any bond, while Kentucky varies its bond by

county. He pointed to the bond anmbunts shown for the other
states; those anounts vary from $500 to $15,000. Representative
Gruenberg opined that $1,000 is too small to be neaningful - it

won't even pay the cost of the court if an attorney is involved,
for exanple.

Nunber 1377

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL indicated that he would like to know if
there has ever been a case in which a [notary public's] seal was
"pul led."

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH observed that the person from the |ieutenant
governor's office who could testify to that question was not
avai |l abl e.

M5. KREITZER noted that that person - [Scott Cdark, Notary
Comm ssion Adm nistrator] - had testified previously [during the
March 8 hearing on HB 439] that in the four years he has held
his job, he has not seen action on a bond.

Number 1377

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG indicated that an increase in the
anount of the bond would add sone protection in the rare case
that there is sonething fraudulent that a notary has done. He
said, "I chose the $5,000 because that is sonething that a
personal surety would be able to afford, and it would provide
sone real protection.”

Number 1400

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH nmi ntained his objection [to Amendnent 1]. He
said he needs nore evidence that this issue has been a problem
He al so declared a conflict, because he has to buy notary bonds
for his [law] office.

Nunber 1425

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked what the cost of notary bonds is.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 19, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG answered that it's wusually nothing,
because it just takes an individual to sign and say he/she is
worth the anmount of the bond and is willing to stand as a
surety.

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH sai d he has paid $50.

Number 1438
A roll call vote was taken. Representative G uenberg voted in
favor of Anmendnent 1. Representatives Coghill, Lynn, Seaton,

and Weyhrauch voted against it. Therefore, Anendnent 1 failed
by a vote of 1-4.

Number 1500

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG noved to adopt [Conceptual] Amendnent
2, which read as follows [original punctuation provided]:

Insert in bill, where drafter determ nes appropriate,
the proposed AS 44.50.078 from CSHB 394(L&C),
Seventeenth Legi sl ature. A copy of the proposed
statue is attached. Renunber and reorder bill as

appropri ate.
Nunber 1519
CHAI R WEYHRAUCH obj ected for di scussion purposes.
Nunber 1528

M5. KREITZER, in response to a question from Representative
G uenberg, told the conmttee that although the [ieutenant
governor's office does not see [Conceptual Anendnent 2] as
necessary, it takes a neutral stance regarding it.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expl ai ned that [Conceptual Anmendnent 2]
clarifies that a person who is a notary and not an attorney nmay
hel p conplete the notorial certificate, but nay not select the
certificate, which neans they may not give |egal advice.

Number 1585

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if Representative G uenberg was
tal king about a blank will form for exanple.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- March 19, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expl ained that he is tal king about the
form of the acknow edgnent, not the fornms thenselves. He gave
an exanple of a statute that requires that the docunent
specifically be "acknow edged. "

Nunmber 1630

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH nmi ntai ned his objection. He stated that this
is a legal issue that he would rather have the House Judiciary
St andi ng Conmi ttee address.

Nunmber 1655
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG wi t hdrew [ Conceptual ] Anendnent 2.
Nunmber 1665

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG [noved to adopt] Anmendnent 3, regarding
mandatory journals, which read as follows [original punctuation
provi ded] :

Add the following text from CSHB 394(L&C), 17th
Legi sl ature, to be inserted where the  drafter
determnes is appropriate (See attached bill):

1. Page 1, lines 10-11
2. Page 2, lines 23-24 (underlined | anguage only)
3. Page 3, lines 12-15

4. Page 4, lines 4 to 27 (Section 10 of that
bill)

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH obj ect ed for discussion purposes.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG explained that the |anguage he is
seeking [from CSHB 394(L&C)] is the language that is indicated
on the attachment [stapled behind Anendnent 3, in the conmttee
packet] . He said about half of the states require a notary to
mai ntain a journal.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH nmmintained his objection for [three] reasons
First, he stated that he is not certain whether this would
subj ect sonebody who doesn't keep a journal to crimna
penalties, and he said he would |ike Representative G uenberg to
bring up the issue to the House Judiciary Standing Committee.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 19, 2004



Second, he said he doesn't want to encunber notaries to keep
sonmething that they don't think is nmandatory. Third, he said he
knows that the lieutenant governor's office always adnonishes
notaries to maintain a journal. He said every time he has had a
signature notarized, there has always been a journal there. He
expl ai ned that he doesn't want transactions to be encunbered by
a mandatory journal requirenent that otherwise "may flow' when
there's not such a requirenent.

Nunber 1729
REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG sai d, "Wl l, I see that's the
commttee's desire, so | won't press this.” [ Amendment 3 was

treated as withdrawn. ]

CHAIR  WEYHRAUCH told Representati ve G uenberg t hat he
appreci ates the work that he has done.

Number 1800

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report the commttee substitute
(CS), Version 23-GH2022\Q Bannister, 3/18/ 04, out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, CSHB 439(STA) was reported out
of the House State Affairs Standing Conmittee.

HIR 31- CONST AM PERVANENT FUND

Nunber 1825

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO 31, Proposing anendnents to the
Constitution of the State of Alaska relating to the Al aska
permanent fund and to paynents to certain state residents from
the Al aska permanent fund; and providing for an effective date
for the anmendnents.

Nunber 1860

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON nmoved to adopt CSHIR 31(WM .

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH obj ected for di scussion purposes.

Nunber 1880

JANET CLARKE, Director, Dwvision of Admnistrative Services,
Department of Health & Social Services (DHSS), noted that the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 19, 2004



departnment has 11 fiscal notes associated with HIR 31. She
pointed to a handout in the commttee packet entitled, "Genera

Fund Sunmary |npact of CSHJR 31 on DHSS Progranms.” |n general
she stated, HIR 31 would change the conplexion of "permanent
fund dividend hold harmess in its use within DHSS. " It also

would, with the one-tinme payout of $20,000, inpact eligibility
for a nunber of progranms in the year that the payout is made.
She noted that, in addition to the inpacts on the departnent,
there would also be inpacts to federal funds "that we could
describe in each individual fiscal note that we submtted."

REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON, regarding the general fund i npact
handout, asked if the brackets indicated |osses or gains to the
general fund.

M5. CLARKE answered that the brackets indicate savings to the
general fund. She indicated that the bottom row of nunbers on
that handout reflect the estimated inpact to the departnent. |In
2005, the state general fund would save $47, 765, 300. Af ter
that, the handout shows a predicted cost of $53, 130,400 in 2006,
$1, 020,000 in 2007, and $1,019,900 in 2008. The total inpact
over that tinme period, she said, is estinmated to be [a cost of]
$7, 405, 000. Ms. Carke stated, "Now each one of these
situations and prograns, they're different conplexities with the
permanent fund, the ineligibility, and the inpact to the federa
and general fund. So, if we have tine, because of the inpact,
we would like to go through each individual fiscal note.™

Number 2030

M5. CLARKE directed the conmttee's attention to the fiscal note
with the conponent | abeled, "ATAP' [Al aska Tenporary Assistance
Progranj. She described this program as the one people think of
as DHSS' s "welfare-to-work™ program and assistance to needy
famlies. She pointed out that the analysis shows that in
fiscal year 2005 (FY 05), [DHSS] wuld see a savings of
[ approxi mately] $26.4 mllion. The bulk of that, she noted,
would be federal funds that DHSS would not spend. She
expl ai ned, "The reason that we see that we would have such a
significant reduction in that program is that we have estinmated
that approximately 4,600 of the 5,000 individuals will receive a

dividend and they will lose their eligibility for that nonth on
the ATAP program and because of the |arge suppl enental payout,
they will also loose eligibility for an additional 11 nonths."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- March 19, 2004



M5. CLARKE noted that the interagency receipts, as noted in the
fiscal note, show a savings in FY 05 of $2,935,900. She
continued as follows:

That fund source is the ... permanent fund dividend
fund. Those are the hold harmess dollars that pay
for, wunder current law, that one nonth in Cctober
where individuals are ineligible and we hold them

har n ess. And the legislature has appropriated
permanent fund dividend funds for that nonth of
ineligibility. Vell, once there is not [a] permanent

fund dividend fund anynore, in 2006, that $2,935, 900
becomes a general fund expenditure, because we're
assumng that in 2005, nost of the caseload will be
i neligible. But based on our current experience wth
our clients, we believe nost of themw Il conme back on
the caseload in 2006, and we will need to have those
resources to pay benefits for the whole year. But it
wi |l becone a general fund expenditure.

Nunber 2147

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his wunderstanding that if the
recipients are no longer receiving permanent fund dividends
(PFDs), then "we wouldn't need any hold harm ess noney."

M5. CLARKE answered that it's correct that those people would
not be held harm ess. However she explained that when people
are held harml ess, they get their benefits and their PFD. She
said, "So, we're paying benefits right now for that one nonth
that would be ineligibility. The funding source for that is the

PFD fund, and when we don't have the PFD ... we need to have a
funding source for that. So, there is a cost.”" |In response to
a question from Representative Coghill, she explained that the

federal funds related to the ATAP are block grant funds, and
it's not a 50-50-match program  She confirnmed his understanding
that regarding "folks who have been determned ineligible for
food stanps - [Supplenmental Security Income (SSI)] - those
federal funds will come into play again [and] will go back to
the way it was before the PFD." She continued, "But for this
particul ar program we have a maintenance of effort requirenent,
rather than a mat situation, so ... we have to keep that
mai nt enance of effort.

Nunber 2236

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 19, 2004



ANGELA SALERNO, Program Coordinator, Director's Ofice, D vision
of Public Assistance, Departnent of Health & Social Services
(DHSS), offered the follow ng history:

As Janet said, it's a block grant, but it's based on
what we were spending for AFDC in 1994, before welfare
reform In 1994, we based that estimate on 11 nonths
of federal funds and one nonth of PFD hold harnl ess.
That's what we were spending then; that's what the
feds held us to. So, we sinply do not have a bl ock
grant for that twelfth nonth. That's why ..., since
1982, we've relied on that one nonth of PFD hold
harmess as a funding source for the tenporary
assi stance program

Nunmber 2268

REPRESENTATIVE COGHI LL offered his understanding that the
mai nt enance of effort agreenent is not anendabl e.

M5. SALERNO answered, "No, it is not. That is mandated by [the
Personal Responsibility and Wrk Opportunity Reconciliation Act
of 1996 (PRWORA)] that brought wus welfare reform and the
[ Tenporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)] program”™

Nunmber 2286
MS. CLARKE added for the record:

W have been able to take advantage of changes in the
mai nt enance of effort |evel. In the governor's
budget, for exanple, we have a $2.8-nmillion general
fund savings for 2005, because we've been able to
reduce our maintenance of effort, because we' ve net
our work participation requirenents, and so, we get a
break on our maintenance of effort calculation. So,
we do take advantage where we can.

M5. CLARKE, in response to a question from Representative
Coghill, noted that in the past, the maintenance of effort has
been reduced, based on the tribal assistance program however,
"that varies, based on when those prograns wll conme into
account. It's a formula, basically.”

Nunmber 2333

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 19, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if the bottom line is that "we"
are currently getting far less federal funds than "we" shoul d.
M5. CLARKE responded, "The federal governnent took a |ook at
what we were spending in 1994, as far as federal funds, and
that's what every state was held to - ... that was our block
grant.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated his concern is in regard to the
hol d harm ess provi si on.

M5. CLARKE, in response to a question from Representative
G uenberg, confirned, "Yes, if we had not had the pernmanent fund
di vidend hold harm ess our federal expenditures would have been
hi gher and our bl ock grant woul d have been hi gher.™

TAPE 04-40, SIDE B
Nunber 2371

M5. SALERNO clarified, "W get eleven-twelfths of what we
shoul d. "

Nunber 2362

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said that [the absent] Representative
Hol m woul d assert that "people would be able to take the nobney
and put thenselves into enploynent, so there mght be sone
challenge to the assertion.” He asked if there is a way that
the state could "prorate" the eleven-twelfths over a 12-nonth
peri od.

MS. CLARKE addressed the issues as foll ows:

One, you could reduce benefit levels. That would take

statutory change to reduce the benefit |levels. W
are hamstrung wth the naintenance of ef fort
requi renent that the federal governnment has placed on
states. They basically said, "W agree to pay you the
1994 level" wuntil they change that rule again, "but
you, state, have to nmaintain a certain |evel of state
expenditure to receive that" - which is the
mai nt enance of effort. So, we are locked in a bit.

Number 2284

MS. CLARKE brought attention to the next fiscal note with the
conponent | abeled, "Tribal Assistance.” She stated that it has

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 19, 2004



all the same characteristics as the previously nentioned ATAP
fiscal note, and the fiscal note analysis is basically the sane.
In response to a question from Representative G uenberg, she
explained that the reason the zero anmounts show in FY '08 [in
both the ATAP and Tribal Assistance fiscal notes] is because, by
that tine, [the departnent] assunes that after the savings in FY
05, the case load comng back on in FY 06, and the residual
costs in FY 07, it wuld "get back to a net zero."

Nunber 2236

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked what the underlying factual
assunptions are that led to the departnment's thinking that the
anount woul d "even out again.”

M5. CLARKE replied, "W have assumed that the caseload would
return to the levels prior to the permanent fund divi dend payout
of $20,000. That's our nmain assunption. W have not taken any
ot her econom ¢ anal ysis."

Nunber 2204

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON nentioned the fund source anount of
[ $2,935,900, listed on the ATAP fiscal note]. He asked why it
occurs in 2006, but not in follow ng years.

M5. CLARKE expl ained as foll ows:

In preparing this fiscal note to show the one-tine
nature of the savings and the cost into the future, we
debated how to denonstrate that for the commttee.
So, the approach we took doesn't -- those costs wll
continue to be shown throughout 2007, 2008, 2009,
[and] 2010. We basically just showed them com ng back
into the base and then getting to equilibrium Then
we have a savings in 2005 below the Iline. W buy
back the one-time nature of that. Typically, fiscal
notes are not one-time, and we struggled with how to
display that so that it made sense to everyone. And
this was our approach to do that.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded, "It seens like we're going to
have that from general funds every following year to fund that
el eventh nonth that we no longer have it comng out of the
permanent fund dividend." He nmentioned trying to get an
appr oxi mati on. He said, "W only have an expense in one year,
and actually what we're doing is we're replacing permanent fund

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 19, 2004



expenditures with [general fund (GF)] for all years after that,
and | think we really need to see that in the analysis.”

Nunber 2138

M5. CLARKE replied that Representative Seaton is correct, and
she said "we" will address that.

Nunber 2118

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked why the amount for FY 05 on the
Tribal Assistance fiscal note shows $6,091.2, while the anmount
for Tribal assistance for the sane year shows on Ms. Carke's
previously nentioned sunmary sheet as $5, 414. 4.

M5. CLARKE explained that the anpbunt on the summary sheet
reflects only the inpact to the state general fund, so it only
i ncl udes those dollars associated with the general fund.

M5. CLARKE turned to the next fiscal note, with the conponent
| abel ed, "PFD Hold Harm ess.” She explained that this conponent
is the one that appropriates all of the PFD fund in one place in
the departnent's budget, whereby the departnent allocates [those
nonies] to the different progranms. [The fiscal note] shows that
[the departnment] would elimnate the use of the PFD fund in FY
05. In response to a question from Representative G uenberg,
she explained that nothing from this fiscal note shows on the
summary sheet, because none of the noney is a general fund
expendi ture. In response to a question from Representative
G uenberg regarding why the summary sheet is being limted to
general fund inpact, rather than showing the total inpact, M.
Clarke said that it was a matter of running out of tine and
usually the legislature is interested in a general fund inpact.

M5. CLARKE stated that there are sone prograns that are "100
percent federal,"” where the funds do not flow through the state
budget . She said, "Food stanp benefits and SSI [supplenental
security incone] benefits that we've been holding people
harm ess, we presune in this analysis that there is no PFD
paynment and they're not ineligible, but those federal funds
woul d be increased and federal governnment would nake those funds
avai l abl e to pay those benefits directly."

Number 2000

M5. CLARKE directed attention to the next fiscal note with the
conponent | abeled, "Adult Public Assistance.” She defined this

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 19, 2004



conponent as a program that pays benefits to poor elderly or
di sabled individuals. O the 15,800 individuals receiving Adult
Public Assistance currently, 14,600 would becone ineligible in
the nonth that they received the PFD and, because of a large
payout, would lose an additional three nonths of eligibility,
thus they would be ineligible for a total of four nonths in FY
05.

Nunmber 1963

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the anmount of [$3,792,300] shown
on the Adult Public Assistance fiscal note in the category of
[general fund (GF)] for FY 06 would continue on each year as the
general fund expenditure.

M5. CLARKE answered that's correct. She nmoved on to the next
fiscal note with the conponent |abeled, "Child Care Benefits."
She explained that it's not a program that has been held
harmess with the PFD hold harm ess program However, she

stated, "W will see, in 2005, that we have a reduction in the
general fund requirenents, as well as our federal bl ock-grant
dol | ars, because of this program™ She said [the departnent]

believes that this caseload would also return to predividend
payout status in 2006, and 2007, based on ineligibility. She
said [the departnent] is predicting that 3,570 famlies
currently receiving assistance would either |ose benefits or
have an increased copay that would produce savings in 2005, and
"costs" in 2006.

Number 1910

M5. CLARKE referred to the fiscal note with the conponent
| abel ed, "Work Services." She continued as foll ows:

Because of our maintenance of effort requirement wth
the federal governnent, we have shown sonme GF savi ngs
in our benefit conponents for Tenporary Assistance and

Tri bal Assistance. But because we would not want to
j eopardi ze our naintenance of effort with the federal
government - there'll be considerable penalties - we

show that we would spend that $12,281,800 in general
fund dollars in 2005 on Wrk Services activities, or
ot her activities, to be determ ned, related to

Tenporary Assistance and "welfare to work." Those
woul d have yet to be determ ned of how we would spend
those (indisc. - coughing).

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 19, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON observed, "And then it shows as a savings
over the next two years."

M5. CLARKE answered that's correct. She said there is a one-
time increase and then a one-tinme savings until equilibriumis
reached.

Nunber 1868

M5. CLARKE noted that the next three fiscal notes relate to
different parts of the foster care program [with conponents
| abel ed, "Foster Care Base Rate," "Foster Care Augnented Rate,"”
and "Foster Care Special Need"]. She stated that a nunber of
children who are in foster care, in the nonth that they receive
the payout, wll not be eligible for the federal Title IV-E
program thus a slight increase is shown in the general fund
expenditures in 2005 and a decrease in 2006.

Number 1843

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG observed that each of the children in
foster care would receive the $20,000 payout. He asked who
woul d manage that and what the cost to the state would be.

M5. CLARKE replied that, currently, the PFDs that children in
foster care receive are placed in a trust account that the state
of Al aska manages on behalf of those children, because they are
in state custody. In response to followup questions from
Representative G uenberg, she confirnmed that [the noney] is not
used for the care of the foster children, but it is retained in
trust for them and the departnent is the trust fund nmanager.

Number 1799

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked what oversight the |egislature
"or anybody" has regarding the managenent policies, the rate of
return, and how well the state's been neeting its fiduciary
duty.

M5. CLARKE answered that [the |legislature] has full authority to
review the policies and practice related to the managenent of
those funds. In response to a followup question from
Representative G uenberg, she said she is not aware of any audit
or oversight conducted in this matter.

Nunber 1770

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- March 19, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said he was wondering if the departnent
has any idea how much Al askans spend on health care and health
i nsur ance.

M5. CLARKE responded that she doesn't know.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ requested that she find out and let him
know.

Nunber 1743

M5. CLARKE directed attention to the fiscal note wth the
conponent | abeled, "Conm ssioner's Ofice" [designating the
departnment affected to be DHSS]. She explained that, despite

the nane, it is an overall fiscal note related to the Medicaid
program which 1is conprised of nmany prograns wthin the
depart nment. She said the departnment decided to prepare one
fiscal note associated with Medicaid and the conmm ssioner's
office, rather than "spread it out anobng its different pieces.”
She stated that the changes and savings in the Medicaid program
woul d be phenonenal, totaling $80.691.500 in FY 05, and $31.2

mllion in general fund savings in 2005. She said, "W again
show the sanme thing where those dollars would add back. e
presune that the clientele would return ... to eligibility in

2006, and there are different tinelines, depending on services,
t hat woul d have residual costs in 2007-2008."

M5. CLARKE noted that on the second and third pages of the
fiscal not e, the departnent has outlined its different
assunptions related to the caseload, which has nmany different
service levels and eligibility groups. She commented that it's
a conpl ex anal ysis.

Nunber 1697

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if there would be any way for [the
departnent] to provide a qualitative analysis.

M5. CLARKE replied that the department has been |ooking at the
nunbers and the inpacts on eligibility groups. She predicted
that "the changes would be profound in the short term on a
nunber of our prograns and clients.”

Nunmber 1675

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL, speaking once again on behalf of
Representative Holm said he thinks that that representative

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 19, 2004



woul d assert that people would take the one-tinme payout to

inmprove their lot in life. He observed that there are huge
assunptions that cannot be enpirically tested. He said, "To
| ook to the nore noble side of human nature, | would say that we

would try to reduce the rolls, rather than |l evel themout."
Nunber 1615
MS. SALERNO responded as fol | ows:

W agree with you. W do believe that there will be a

portion of our tenporary assistance caseload that
[does] take the opportunity to inprove [its] |lot.

Unfortunately, our |argest caseload, ... over 15,000
people, are those on adult public assistance. These
are elderly and disabled fol ks who are on the program
because they cannot work. Those are the folks we're
nost concerned about, specifically around the | oss of
Medi cai d. These are fol ks who have no other form of
support or nedical assistance, and | think they can't
go wthout their nedical assistance. So, that's a

huge i npact on the community as a whol e.

Qur tenporary assistance caseload is dropping, as you
know. We're very happy with the results we've had and
are happy to see folks |eaving us. The adult public
assi stance caseload, by and large, never |eaves us,
and that casel oad grows at about 2 percent every year.
W have introduced sone cost-contai nment neasures that

are paying off - nostly around better filtering for
peopl e getting on. But once people are on, they go
through a very rigorous process of disability
determ nation, and they tend not to |eave us. So,

that's really the inpact we're concerned about.

Nunber 1558

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON indicated that he wants an alternate
fiscal note [produced]. He said he is concerned about the idea
of saying, "Ckay, here's cost,"” and then, as soon as that anount
is staying stable for several years, "we don't show it." He
explained that gives a false inpression of "what this is.” He

of fered an exanpl e. He encouraged the departnent to prepare an
alternative fiscal note that shows what is ongoi ng.

Number 1509

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- March 19, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the question has not been asked
regarding what the proposed legislation would do to the
popul ati on of Al aska. He predicted sone people would take the
noney and run. Second, he suggested that if people have been
notivated to nove to Al aska because of the PFD, then perhaps the
nunbers of people immgrating to Al aska would decrease. He
asked if the departnent has consi dered either issue.

M5. CLARKE answer ed no.
Number 1429

JACK KREI NHEDER, Chief Analyst, Ofice of the Director, Ofice
of Managenent & Budget (OwB), Ofice of the Governor, provided
comments on behalf of Representative Holms staff regarding a
br oader perspective on the inpact of the proposed |egislation on
state finances and state agency finances. He noted that the
governor does support the POW aspect contained in the
resolution, but that the adm nistration has not taken a position

on the $20,000 payout elenent. Regarding fiscal inpacts on
state agencies, he said the one thing to keep in mnd is that a
POW would provide a stable, large stream of income to the
state. He added, "In this case it would be about $800 nillion a
year." Any negative inpacts to state agencies could certainly

be offset through that stable earning stream he said.

MR. KREI NHEDER noted that another point to keep in mnd is that
sonme of the negative inpacts that mght be discussed, in terns
of loss of permanent fund paynents to state agencies, would al so
happen with a POW w thout the $20,000 payout. He offered an
exanpl e. Under that approach, he said, the |ong-term dividends
woul d be sonmewhat smaller than the status quo and, therefore,
there would be simlar types of inpacts or fiscal notes, but
smal | er. He suggested, "Maybe 20 percent of what you' re seeing
here, if dividends mght be a couple hundred dollars less than
ot herw se. "

MR. KREI NHEDER said he thinks some of the previous discussions
regarding the inpacts on DHSS casel oads are certainly relevant.
In terns of financial inpacts on state agencies, "those would
certainly be conpensated through the incone stream that would be
provi ded through this POW approach or sonme other [approach].”
He offered to answer questions.

Nunber 1262

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 19, 2004



JERRY BURNETT, Director, Adm nistrative Services, Departnent of
Corrections (DOC), revealed that, in the current year, DOCC
received approximately $6.8 million in PFD crimnal funds, and
he nmentioned a budget in FY 05 of approximately $5.3 mllion.
He stated that the effect of [HIR 31] would be a one-tine
availability of PFD crimnal funds in an anount of approxinmately
$180 mllion, with no PFD crimnal funds in the future. He
said, "How those would be distributed to agencies, again, is
entirely up to the legislature [and] OWB." M. Burnett
explained that PFD crimnal funds in DOC are used to offset
general fund expenditures. He said [DOC] is not concerned with
funding source, but rather wth the total of funding. He said
it would be a policy call for the |egislature.

Nunber 1205

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ stated that he is not in favor of "this
concept” at all. Notw thstanding that, he suggested, "You could
take that $180 million [and] set up an endowrent with it, and it
woul d generate $9 mllion a year, which would, | think, exceed
t he annual appropriations ... fromfelon funds now. "

Nunber 1187

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked if wvictinms' rights would get a
simlar one-tinme only shot.

MR. BURNETT clarified that the one-tinme only shot that he was
speaking to was in regard to the entire range for victins'
rights [and] DOC. He said, "If it's shared as currently, where
the Departnment of Corrections is getting close to 60 percent of
each annual appropriation, we could offset in one year the
entire ... $102 nmillion that we nmight receive." But
theoretically, wunder this plan, in one year, (indisc.) the
victins' rights, it would have to be a nmulti-year appropriation
percentage that they receive.”

Number 1157

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if anybody has considered the
effect that giving a famly of four $80,000 mi ght have on the
| evel of crimnal activity.

MR. BURNETT replied that he is certain that people have had

di scussions about that, but it would take sone research to
quantify that. He said, "Alnost certainly, any boom that we've

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 19, 2004



had in the past has changed the level of crimnal activity one
way or the other.™

Nunmber 1088

DENI SE HENDERSON, Executive Director, Council on Donestic
Violence and Sexual Assault (CDVSA), Departnent of Public
Safety, told the commttee that she would speak briefly to the
inpact that [HIR 31] would have on CDVSA. Currently, CDVSA
receives a large portion of PFD "crind noney [PFD nonies
wi thheld fromcrimnals] and a portion of this noney goes out to
support the shelters. She said $200,000 of that is
automatical ly appropri ated to t he batterer-intervention
prograns, so the one-tine payout would have a substantial i npact
on the noney that [CDVSA] receives and is able to provide to
shelters and prograns for batterers.

Nunber 1018

SHEI LA KI NG, Fi nance Oficer, Post secondary Educati on
Comm ssion, Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent,
stated that [HIR 31] would provide a one-time influx of PFD
garni shment cash for the student |oan program She brought
attention to the fiscal note [with the conponent | abeled,
"Student Loan Prograni and affecting the Departnment of Education
and Early Devel opnent], which shows that receipt of funds to be
an estimated $50 nmillion in FY 05 wth a mniml decline after
t hat .

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if that noney would go into a revolving
loan nmade available to other students for educati ona
opportunities.

M5. KING answered yes. She explained that it would becone a
pl edge receipt recycled into one of the trusts and would be used
to take out sone bonds or provide "recycling receipts for

progranms.” In response to a question from Chair Wyhrauch, she
said the current anmpbunt received is about $5 mllion; therefore,
it would be approximately $45 nillion nore than was received
| ast year.

Nunber 0961

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, regarding the student |oan fund, offered
his understanding that it's about bonding and transferring that
noney to the general fund, so it's not as if the one-tine noney

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- March 19, 2004



would be noney that would enable [the departnent] to do
sonething that it couldn't do already.

M5. KI NG responded as foll ows:

Qur funds do not go to the general fund; they're
corporate receipts. The corporation and the
commi ssioner are self-sustaining entities. The
receipts that conme in for the loans are pledged as
bonds, because we've used bonds to finance the program
to nake ourselves a self-sustaining entity. Any noney
that we've paid to the state has been as a dividend.
W did just do a bond issue to return $75 mllion to
the state, as you're probably aware, and that 1is
separate and outside of the trusts that fund our
progr ans.

Nunmber 0892
GQJY BELL, Director, Central Ofice, Division of Admnistrative

Servi ces, Departnent of Labor & Wborkforce Devel opnent, said that
departnment offers a nunber of federally funded job training

pr ogr ans. He nment i oned t he Di vi si on of Vocat i onal
Rehabilitation and the D vision of Enploynent Security. He
said, "W're estimating a one-tine inpact on federal funding of
about $6.1 mllion in job training funds." He clarified that
[that inpact] would be a reduction in funds. He said it is
estimated that 76 clients wth the D vision of Vocational
Rehabilitation will exceed the incone threshold by virtue of
[the $20,000] paynent, which will have a $175, 000 inpact. I n

the senior community service enploynent program which has a 125
percent poverty threshold, it is estimated that 215 people w |
be affected, wth a reduction in federal funding of $1.7

mllion. In the adult training programit is estimted that 228
people would not be eligible for one year, with an inpact of
about $1 mllion. In the youth training program 784 people

[would not be eligible], with an inpact of approximately $3.2
mllion.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if [HIR 31] would have an inpact of
allowing people to enter into a business that they otherw se
woul d not be able to start without the noney. He asked if there
m ght be the potential for growh and enploynment opportunities
in the state.

MR. BELL replied that [the departnent] has not done that
anal ysis; however, he said that |ink could be surm sed. Wth

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- March 19, 2004



the one-tine paynent, people could seek, through their own
neans, the job training that [the department] would otherw se
provi de.

CHAIR VWEYHRAUCH noted that there has been a l|ot of discussion
regarding the multiplier effect on the econony. He asked about
the inpact on the state.

MR. BELL responded that he would have to get back to Chair
Weyhrauch on that query. He said that certainly there would be
a one-tinme "heating" effect that would have an imedi ate i npact
on the econony, but would dimnish quite rapidly.

Nunber 0752
M CHAEL BARNHI LL, Assistant Attorney General, Comercial/Fair

Busi ness Section, Civil Division (Juneau), Departnent of Law, in
response to a question from Chair Wyhrauch, said he doesn't

think there would be any commercial inmpact [from HIR 31] to
Al aska, beside what has already been voiced regarding fiscal
i npacts. In regard to individual financial inpact, he noted

that there would certainly be an individual incone tax inpact
for all residents for receiving $20,000 nore incone; it would
put them into higher tax brackets, as well as potentially
putting theminto "alternative m ninmumtax scenarios.”

Number 0692

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked what the inpact would be on the
Depart ment of Law.

MR. BARNHI LL indicated that he would not attenpt to estimte
what the inpact would be for each section of the departnment. As

to his own section, he reported that litigation would probably
have to be handled up front, regarding the constitutionality of
the provision. In response to remarks by Representative
G uenberg, he said, "This would increase the |I|ikelihood of

eligibility litigation, whether the <current eligibility for
PFD's is constitutional, both for state and federal purposes.”
Regardi ng whether a one-tine |arge payout would increase crineg,
he said, "You' re guess is as good as mine."

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked about potential constitutional
probl ens, either in the legislation or the application.

MR. BARNHILL replied that the constitutional issues that could
be raised with respect to eligibility for the dividend would

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- March 19, 2004



relate to the privileges and immunities clause of the federa
constitution and the equal protection clause of both the state
and the federal <constitutions. In response to followup
guestions from Representative Guenberg, he suggested that
people who are not currently eligible for the permanent fund
di vidend could raise an argunent that that violates the right to
equal protection and the rights wunder the privileges and
immunities clause to equal treatnent as nonresidents. He
pointed out that those argunments have been raised in the past,
and the one-year durational residency requirenment has generally
wi t hstood challenge. He noted that there have been recent cases
in the U S. Suprenme Court questioning the validity of the 12-
nont h durational residency requirenent in certain circunstances.
He added, "Wiether this is one of those circunstances is
anybody's guess. "

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he sits on the House Judiciary
Standing Commttee, which is next in line to hear HIR 31. He
asked M. Barnhill to provide that commttee with a |[egal
menor andum from [the Departnent of Law] regarding "those recent
devel opnments in this area and how this mght effect the issue of
chal l enges to that, and the chance of success on that."

MR. BARNHILL said he would work with Representative G uenberg's
office on that matter.

Number 0453

SHARON BARTON, Director, Central Ofice, Permanent Fund D vi dend
Di vision, Departnment of Revenue, focused attention on a fiscal
note with the conponent |[|abeled, "Permanent Fund Dividend"
[affecting the Departnent of Revenue], which she described as
strai ght forward. She indicated that the fiscal note addresses
elimnation of +the division and the cost reduction to the

budget . She noted that sone functions would go on beyond the
end of the program Fraud investigations would need to be
cl eaned up; collections would go on for sone years; and 18-year-
old filers would have until the eighteenth year out to file.

She said there is not cost for that shown on the fiscal note,
because the commssioner's office would have to cover those
functions, such as appeals that are expected to cone for sone
tinme. She stated, "Wth the increase in the anount of the
dividend, we would have a lot nore appeals, and it wll be
worthwhile for nore of those individuals to take them on to
court."”

Number 0322

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -31- March 19, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that the wultimte cost of
defending these cases would fall back to the [Departnent of
Revenue]. Additionally, he suggested that with a famly of five
getting $100, 000, much nore stringent neasures would be needed
to ensure agai nst fraudul ent applications.

M5. BARTON answered, "Yes to all of that." She noted that there
would be additional formal appeals officers to handle the
i ncrease in appeals. She stated that they would apply all the
same rules they always have; however, the quantity would be
greater. She stated the intent to add an additional fraud
i nvesti gator. She noted that since other parts of the division
woul d be phased out, the fraud unit could be given nore help.
She said it would not be known whether nore resources are
necessary to keep on the fraud investigator into 2006, wuntil
t hat year approaches.

Nunber 0201

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Ms. Barton to consider what
additional indices of residency and eligibility should be
requi red, because there will be a lot nore people with nore

noney than they've ever seen in their lives and, therefore, wth
nore notives for fraud.

M5. BARTON said that the rules are in place now. She expl ai ned
that the filing closes in tw weeks, on March 31, for the 2004
dividend, so the regulations can't be changed at this point.
She proffered that [the division] can certainly scrutinize the
applications with nore diligence.

Nunber 0101

The commttee took an at-ease from9:36 a.m to 9:37 a.m

Number 0088

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH announced that HIR 31 was heard and hel d.

HB 467- COVMEMORATI VE QUARTERS COWM SSI ON

Number 0025
CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the last order of business was

HOUSE BILL NO. 467, "An Act establishing an Al aska Conmenorative
Coin Conmission to develop the design concepts and to nmake

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -32- March 19, 2004



recommendations regarding the final design of the Al aska quarter
under the 50 States Commenorative Coin Program Act; and
providing for an effective date."

TAPE 04-41, SIDE A
Number 0029

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH wel coned Jo Ann Jones, a fifth-grade teacher
from Auke Bay El enentary School, and her students. He asked the
commttee nenbers to introduce thenselves to the students. He
noted that the students have studied the bill and want to offer
testinony regarding it.

Number 0100

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, at the request of Chair Wyhrauch,
noved to adopt HB 467 "for discussion purposes.”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, at the request of Chair Wyhrauch,
obj ected for discussion purposes.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH offered a brief explanation of parlianentary
pr ocedure.

Number 0165

REPRESENTATI VE TOM ANDERSON, Alaska State Legislature, as
sponsor of HB 467, explained that the proposed |egislation would
give the Alaskan public the opportunity to design a
commenorative quarter. He noted that in 1997, the federa
governnment passed a law that said every state wll have a
commenorative quarter with a design on it that represents that
state. He noted that many peopl e have suggested designs for the
Al aska comrenorative quarter already. He stated that the
federal governnent and the U. S. Mnt have recommended that [each
state] assign a conmenorative coin comittee.

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON said HB 467 provides for 11 nenbers [on
the commttee]. He indicated that six of the nmenbers would be
public nenbers. For exanple, one nenber would be selected from
a list submitted by the Alaska State Council on the Arts, one
menber would be a student from a public, private, or secondary
school in the state, and the remaining four public nmenbers would
be appointed from each of the four judicial districts in the
state. He noted that there would al so be a nenber selected from
the majority caucus and mnority caucus in both the House and
the Senate. Finally, the eleventh nmenber would be a desi gnee of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 33- March 19, 2004



t he governor. He explained that, by default, if there were no
commi ssion, the governor would pick the design. He expressed
that he would rather have the public select the design, rather
t han one person.

Number 0370

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON directed attention to the fiscal note
He explained to the students that the fiscal note shows that the
cost in 2006 would be $30,000. That amount would be for trave
and per diem for the people on the conmi ssion to neet four times
to analyze what would be the best design for the commenorative

guarter. He offered his understanding that there would be "an
addi ti onal expense" in 2007. In 2008, the [design] would be
presented and the coin mnted. He noted that the bill would

take effect on January 1, 2005, which would give the governor
enough tine to prepare for the two-year cycle reconmended by the
US Mnt.

Nunber 0522

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN offered his understanding that the term "two
bits" nmeans 25 cents.

Number 0551

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG reveal ed that his stepfather, Jacques
Schni er, designed the commenorative half-dollar for the opening
of the [San Francisco-Oakland Bay Bridge] in [1936]. He
explained that a sculptor made a plastic nodel for the coin,
whi ch he possesses.

Number 0600

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the fiscal note also includes
time in neetings for the actual recommendati on of the selection.

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON offered his understanding that it does.
He deferred to a representative from the Departnent of Revenue.
He added that he wants to nmake [HB 467] coincide wth another
bill he sponsored, which is in regard to a planning conmttee
for the fiftieth anniversary of statehood.

Number 0694

MARI A VWEYHRAUCH, Student Council Representative, M. Jones'
fifth grade class, Auke Bay Elenentary School, testified that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 34- March 19, 2004



the class feels that "students ages 5-18 should be on the

comm ssion."” She suggested an anendnent on page 2, line 23, to
read: "public, private, or home school". She stated that the
students feel the change wll add to the creativity of the

conmi ssi on.

M5. WEYHRAUCH asked if there would be a design contest open to
school -aged students throughout the state for the design of the

Al aska [commenorative] quarter. In response to a question from
Representative Lynn, she confirned that she is related to Chair
Weyhr auch. In response to a request for clarification from

Representative Seaton, she restated the idea for the anmendnent.
In response to a question from Representative G uenberg, she
confirmed that the students want to [open the requirenent for
one of the seats on the conmssion] to allow [elenentary
students], rather than just secondary students.

Nunber 0803
CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH suggest ed t he anendnment woul d be concept ual
Nunber 0820

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON said he likes the idea for t he
anendnent .

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH specified that the intent of the anmendnment woul d
be to add home school students as well as students in elenentary
school .

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON rem nded the commttee that Benny Benson
[was the age of an elenentary student] when he entered and won
the design contest for the Al aska State Fl ag.

Nunber 0876

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt [Conceptual Amendnent 1] as
fol | ows:

On page 2, line 23:

Bet ween "public" and "private"
| nsert ","

Del ete "secondary"
I nsert "or hone"

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 35- March 19, 2004



Nunmber 0880

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH objected "for purposes of denonstration”™ [to
illustrate for the students what happens when soneone objects to
a notion].

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Lynn, Berkowtz
G uenberg, Seaton, Coghill, and Wyhrauch voted in favor of
Conceptual Anmendnent 1. Therefore, Conceptual Amendnment 1 was
adopted by a vote of 6-0.

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH asked if there was further discussion regarding
the bill. He noted that there had been "di scussion about the

contest,” and he said, "lI'mnot sure howto deal with that."
Nunber 0933

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ suggested that the committee include a
|l etter of intent with the bill, "suggesting (indisc. - coughing)
that that would be sonething that the |egislature would | ook
upon favorably.” He said he thinks it would not be good for the

| egislature to tell the conm ssion howto performits duties.
Number 0971

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG echoed that he hopes the letter would
sinply state that "this is one thing they m ght consider."

Nunber 1013

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH clarified for the students' benefit that the
letter of intent would let the commssion know that the
| egi sl ature recommends the idea of having a contest anobng school
children J[to conme up wth the design for the Al aska
commenorative quarter].

Nunber 1044

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON wi t hdrew his objection to HB 467.

Number 1055

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG explained the process of noving the
bill out of commttee for the benefit of the students.

Number 1073

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 36- March 19, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to report HB 467, as anended, out
of comittee W th i ndi vi dual reconmendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal note. There being no objection, CSHB
467(STA) was reported out of the House State Affairs Standing
Committee.

ADJ OQURNVENT
Nunber 1119
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 9:56
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -37- March 19, 2004



